
SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT (METRO) 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 

JANUARY 28, 2022 – 9:00 AM 

DUE TO COVID-19, THE JANUARY 28, 2022 SANTA CRUZ METRO BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED VIA TELECONFERENCE ONLY (NO PHYSICAL LOCATION) 

PURSUANT TO ASSEMBLY BILL 361 (GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54953) 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC MAY NOT ATTEND THIS MEETING IN PERSON 

The public may participate remotely via the Zoom website at this link and following the instructions or 
by calling 1-669-900-6833.  Meeting ID 845 4214 1877. 

Members of the public are encouraged to participate remotely.  Public comments may be submitted via 
email to boardinquiries@scmtd.com.  Please indicate in your email the agenda item to which your 
comment applies.  Comments submitted before the meeting will be provided to the Directors before or 
during the meeting.  Comments submitted after the meeting is called to order will be included in the 
Board’s correspondence that is posted online at the board meeting packet link.  Oral public comments 
will also be accepted during the meeting through Zoom.  Should Zoom not be operational, please check 
online at:  www.scmtd.com for any updates or further instruction. 

The Board of Directors Meeting Agenda Packet can be found online at www.scmtd.com. 

The Board may take action on each item on the agenda.  The action may consist of the recommended 
action, a related action or no action.  Staff recommendations are subject to action and/or change by 
the Board of Directors. 

BOARD ROSTER 

Director Jimmy Dutra City of Watsonville 
Director Shebreh Kalantari-Johnson City of Santa Cruz 
Director Manu Koenig County of Santa Cruz 
Director Donna Lind  City of Scotts Valley 
Director Bruce McPherson  County of Santa Cruz 
Director Donna Meyers  City of Santa Cruz 
Director – Vacant  City of Watsonville 
Director Larry Pageler County of Santa Cruz 
Director Kristen Petersen  City of Capitola 
Director – Vacant  County of Santa Cruz 
Director Mike Rotkin County of Santa Cruz 
Ex-Officio Director Dan Henderson UC Santa Cruz 
Ex-Officio Director Alta Northcutt  Cabrillo College 

Dawn Crummié METRO Interim CEO/General Manager 
Julie Sherman METRO General Counsel 

TITLE 6 – INTERPREATION SERVICES / TÍTULO 6 – SERVICIOS DE TRADUCCIÓN 
Spanish language interpretation and Spanish language copies of the agenda packet are available on an as-needed basis.  Please make 
advance arrangements with the Executive Assistant at 831-426-6080.  Interpretación en español y traducciones en español del paquete 
de la agenda están disponibles sobre una base como-necesaria. Por favor, hacer arreglos por adelantado con Coordinador de Servicios 
Administrativos al numero 831-426-6080. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84542141877
mailto:boardinquiries@scmtd.com
http://www.scmtd.com/
http://www.scmtd.com/


Board of Directors Agenda 
January 28, 2022 
Page 2 of 4 

SECTION 1:  OPEN SESSION 

NOTE:  THE BOARD CHAIR MAY TAKE ITEMS OUT OF ORDER 

1 CALL TO ORDER 

2 SWEAR IN NEW DIRECTORS 

3 ROLL CALL 

4 ANNOUNCEMENTS 

4.1  Today’s meeting is being broadcast by Community Television of Santa Cruz 
 County. 

5 BOARD OFFICERS AND COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 
Donna Lind, Board Chair 

6 BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMENTS 

7 ORAL AND WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

7.1 December 19, 2021 email from Brian Peoples, Trail Now, “Mike Rotkin 
Disrespect to County Staff” with Director Rotkin’s response 

7.2 January 1, 2022 email from Brian Peoples, Trail Now, “Update County 
Master Plan and Railbank / Build Interim Coastal Trail” 

7.3 January 1, 2022 email from Peter Stanger, “Update County Master Plan and 
Railbank / Build Interim Coastal Trail” 

8 LABOR ORGANIZATION COMMUNICATIONS 

9 ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATION TO SUPPORT EXISTING AGENDA ITEMS 

CONSENT AGENDA 

All items appearing on the Consent Agenda are recommended actions which are 
considered to be routine and will be acted upon as one motion.  All items removed will 
be considered later in the agenda.  The Board Chair will allow public input prior to the 
approval of the Consent Agenda items. 

10.1 ACCEPT AND FILE:  PRELIMINARY APPROVED CHECK JOURNAL DETAIL 
FOR THE MONTHS OF NOVEMBER AND DECEMBER 2021 

Chuck Farmer, CFO 

10.2 ACCEPT AND FILE:  MINUTES FROM DECEMBER 10, 2021 AND 
DECEMBER 17, 2021 BOARD OF DIRECTORS SPECIAL MEETINGS, 
JANUARY 14, 2022 FINANCE, BUDGET, & AUDIT STANDING COMMITTEE, 
AND JANUARY 14, 2022 PERSONNEL/HR STANDING COMMITTEE 

Dawn Crummié, Interim CEO/General Manager 

10.3 ACCEPT AND FILE:  YEAR TO DATE MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT AS OF 
DECEMBER 31, 2021 
Chuck Farmer, CFO 



Board of Directors Agenda 
January 28, 2022 
Page 3 of 4 

10.4 ACCEPT AND FILE:  ACCEPTANCE OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WITH 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
Chuck Farmer, CFO 

10.5 ACCEPT AND FILE:  SEMI-ANNUAL REPORT ON THE STATUS OF 
METRO’S DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PROGRAM 

John Urgo, Planning & Development Director 

10.6 ACCEPT AND FILE:  THE QUARTERLY PROCUREMENT REPORT FOR 3RD 
QUARTER OF FY22 
Carolee Curtin, Interim Purchasing Manager 

10.7 APPROVE:  CONSIDERATION OF AUTHORIZING THE BOARD CHAIR TO 
SEND A LETTER TO STATE LEGISLATIVE REPRESENTATIVES IN 
SUPPORT OF COLLECTING NON-TAX TRANSIT FEES ON SPECIFIC 
PROPERTIES DEFINED BY THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 

John Urgo, Planning & Development Director 

10.8 APPROVE:  CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FY22 
REVISED CAPITAL BUDGET/PORTFOLIO 
Chuck Farmer, CFO 

10.9 APPROVE:  RECOMMENDED ACTION ON TORT CLAIMS 
Curtis Moses, Safety, Security & Risk Management Director 

10.10 APPROVE:  REVIEW REQUEST FOR AUTHORIZATION AND FUNDING OF AN HR 
ANALYST I POSITION 

Dawn Crummié, HR Director 

10.11 APPROVE:  DISCLOSURE POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

Chuck Farmer, CFO 

10.12 APPROVE:  CONSIDERATION OF ISSUING PURCHASE ORDER TO GMV 
SYNCROMATICS FOR CONTINUATION OF INTELLIGENT 
TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM SUPPORT 

Isaac Holly, IT and ITS Director  

10.13 APPROVE:  CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION MAKING CERTAIN 
FINDINGS AND DIRECTING THAT THE BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEE 
MEETINGS WILL CONTINUE TO BE HELD VIA TELECONFERENCE 

Dawn Crummié, Interim CEO/General Manager 

REGULAR AGENDA 

11 AUTHORIZING SALES TAX REVENUE BONDS (MEASURE G), SERIES 2022 
(FEDERALLY TAXABLE) TO REFINANCE THE DISTRICT’S CALPERS UAL 
AND APPROVAL OF RELATED LEGAL AND DISCLOSURE DOCUMENTS 
Chuck Farmer, CFO 



Board of Directors Agenda 
January 28, 2022 
Page 4 of 4 

12 PRESENTATION OF EMPLOYEE LONGEVITY AWARDS:  (10 YEARS:  RON 
BUSHNELL, BLANCA EUSSE-VALDEZ, HOWARD JAMES, ELIZABETH 
THOMPSON, LYLE TOLINE, EDGARDO VILLALOBOS, AND STEFAN 
WOLICZKO); (15 YEARS:  H.D. BROWN, ANTONIO CASTILLO, EFREN 
ESCAMILLA, PEGGY FLECHTNER, LEONEL HERRERA, HUNG C. LEE, AND 
TODD PINSKY); AND (20 YEARS:  MARIO ARELLANO, JON 
BARTHOLOMEW, RHONDA CARTER, HARLAN GLATT, AND DELVIS SEDA) 
Donna Lind, Board Chair 

13 RETIREE RESOLUTIONS OF APPRECIATION:  DENNIS BALDWIN, ALEX 
CLIFFORD, GEORGE FELDER, MELODY MARTIN AND GINA PYE 

Donna Lind, Board Chair 

14 PROCLAMATION OF APPRECIATION IN HONOR OF ALEX CLIFFORD 

Donna Lind, Board Chair 

15 METRO ADVISORY COMMITTEE (MAC) SEMI-ANNUAL ORAL UPDATE 

James Von Hendy, MAC Chair 

16 RATIFICATION OF ENGAGEMENT LETTER WITH INTERIM CEO 

Donna Lind, Board Chair 

17 INTERIM CEO ORAL REPORT / COVID-19 UPDATE 

Dawn Crummié, Interim CEO/General Manager 

18 ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEXT REGULAR BOARD MEETING:  FRIDAY, 
FEBRUARY 25, 2022 AT 9:00 AM VIA TELECONFERENCE 
Donna Lind, Board Chair 

19 ADJOURNMENT 
Donna Lind, Board Chair 

Accessibility for Individuals with Disabilities  

This document has been created with accessibility in mind. With the exception of certain 3rd 
party and other attachments, it passes the Adobe Acrobat XI Accessibility Full Check. If you 
have any questions about the accessibility of this document, please email your inquiry to 
accessibility@scmtd.com. Upon request, Santa Cruz METRO will provide for written agenda 
materials in appropriate alternative formats, or disability-related modification or accommodation, 
including auxiliary aids or services, to enable individuals with disabilities to participate in and 
provide comments at/related to public meetings. Please submit a request, including your name, 
phone number and/or email address, and a description of the modification, accommodation, 
auxiliary aid, service, or alternative format requested at least two days before the meeting. 
Requests should be emailed to boardinquiries@scmtd.com or submitted by phone to the 
Executive Assistant at 831.426.6080. Requests made by mail (sent to the Executive Assistant, 
Santa Cruz METRO, 110 Vernon Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060) must be received at least two 
days before the meeting. Requests will be granted whenever possible and resolved in favor of 
accessibility.  



5.1



5.2



5.3



5.4



5A.1



5A.2



5B.1



Attachment C

5C.1



Attachment C

5C.2



Attachment C

5C.3



Attachment C

5C.4



Attachment C

5C.5



Attachment C

5C.6



Attachment C

5C.7



Attachment C

5C.8



- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK -



This Message Is From an External Sender
This message came from outside your organization.
Please exercise caution when clicking links or opening attachments.

From: Michael Rotkin
To: Brian Peoples
Cc: openup@cats.ucsc.edu; Guy Preston; Matt Machado; Manu Koenig; boardinquiries@scmtd.com;

ryan.coonerty@santacruzcounty.us; Andy Schiffrin; Bruce McPherson; Gine Johnson; Zach Friend;
rpquinn@pacbell.net; jimmy.dutra@cityofwatsonville.org; Shannon Munz; Yesenia Parra; Sarah Christensen;
Rachel Moriconi; Grace Blakeslee; ladykpetersen@gmail.com; jacques.bertrand@sbcglobal.net;
eduardo.montesino@cityofwatsonville.org; Alex Clifford; sbrown@cityofsantacruz.com

Subject: Re: Mike Rotkin disrepect to County Staff
Date: Sunday, December 19, 2021 8:21:55 AM

Brian, Matt Machado did nothing wrong in going after additional funding. It’s the
Commission’s responsibility to make the decision about these priorities and its them I
challenged in my op ed, not Matt. Read the editorial again if you think I was attacking County
staff. RE Margies letter: none of of the money for the train has come out of a pot that had been
previously dedicated to Metro. Funding for the train has come out of the Measure D funds that
the voters dedicated to that purpose. What would be wrong is taking money that the voters
provided for the train for the trail. And, perhaps its not obvious, but fixing the washouts on the
corridor is necessary not just for the train but for the trail as well.
mike 

On Dec 19, 2021, at 5:42 AM, Brian Peoples <brian@trailnow.org> wrote:

Mr. Rotkin, 

We had intended to write a commentary rebuttal to your letter on Roads versus Metro
but both Margie and Matt have already called you out publicly on your poor public
policy leadership. 

The idea that Matt felt it necessary to write a letter to the editor in the local paper to
defend himself is absolutely unacceptable.   Our community is very fortunate to have
Matt Machado and Guy Preston leading the county on transportation infrastructure.  
Our transportation system is so messed up in Santa Cruz County because politicians like
yourself believe they know how to design transportation systems over engineers.   Both
Matt and Guy are doing an exceptional job leading the community on transportation.  
Your disrespect to County staff in the newspaper is unacceptable and you should
apologize to County staff for your disrespectful public display. 

Sincerely, 

Brian Peoples

Trail Now

Sentinel Letters: 

Letter | Not maintaining wretched roads not an option 

As a community we all depend upon roads every single day. It is how
services get to us and us to them. We cannot thrive or survive without
roads. All modes of transportation depend upon our roads. The condition
of our roads is critical to our economic viability and safety. Decades of

Written Communications to the Board of Directors

7.1.1

mailto:openup@ucsc.edu
mailto:brian@trailnow.org
mailto:openup@cats.ucsc.edu
mailto:gpreston@sccrtc.org
mailto:Matt.Machado@santacruzcounty.us
mailto:manu.koenig@santacruzcounty.us
mailto:boardinquiries@scmtd.com
mailto:ryan.coonerty@santacruzcounty.us
mailto:Andy.Schiffrin@santacruzcounty.us
mailto:Bruce.McPherson@santacruzcounty.us
mailto:Gine.Johnson@santacruzcounty.us
mailto:BDS022@co.santa-cruz.ca.us
mailto:rpquinn@pacbell.net
mailto:jimmy.dutra@cityofwatsonville.org
mailto:smunz@sccrtc.org
mailto:yparra@sccrtc.org
mailto:schristensen@sccrtc.org
mailto:rmoriconi@sccrtc.org
mailto:gblakeslee@sccrtc.org
mailto:ladykpetersen@gmail.com
mailto:jacques.bertrand@sbcglobal.net
mailto:eduardo.montesino@cityofwatsonville.org
mailto:AClifford@scmtd.com
mailto:sbrown@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:brian@trailnow.org


under-investment have left our county roads in a failing condition. We
have some of the worst roads in the state. 

Not maintaining our roads is not an option, unless of course we are ready
to stop using them. 

— Matt Machado, Aptos 

 

Sentinel Letter | With county roads falling apart, choices are clear 

Mike Rotkin’s recent Guest Commentary (Dec. 15) on the decision at the
Regional Transportation Commission to repair pothole-marked roads
versus buying one electric bus for Metro is steeped in hypocrisy. The
county’s roads are literally falling apart, and all five supervisors are
besieged daily with complaints from constituents. Everyone uses the
roads, either on Metro, ParaCruz, bikes, or cars. We all want a cleaner
environment and are committed to combating climate change. But there
isn’t a bottomless pit of money available. Choices need to be made, and
the first choice should be to maintain the badly deteriorating
infrastructure we have. 

If Mr. Rotkin wants to fund more electric buses, which we do need, then
perhaps he should stop voting to waste money on a financially infeasible
train and build the trail with Measure D money voters already approved.
Then we could get two transportation assets that actually combat climate
change! 

— Margie Erickson, Santa Cruz

Written Communications to the Board of Directors

7.1.2



This Message Is From an External Sender
This message came from outside your organization.
Please exercise caution when clicking links or opening attachments.

From: Brian Peoples
To: ryan.coonerty@santacruzcounty.us; Bruce McPherson; greg.caput@co.santa-cruz.ca.us
Cc: Guy Preston; Matt Machado; Manu Koenig; Zach Friend; rpquinn@pacbell.net; info@sccrtc.org;

boardinquiries@scmtd.com; openup@cats.ucsc.edu; Gine Johnson; rlj12@comcast.net;
eduardo.montesino@cityofwatsonville.org; Andy Schiffrin; Sarah Christensen; Shannon Munz;
alnorthc@cabrillo.edu; sbrown@cityofsantacruz.com; jacques.bertrand@sbcglobal.net;
ladykpetersen@gmail.com; Nathan Nguyen

Subject: Update County Master Plan and railbank / build interim Coastal Trail
Date: Saturday, January 01, 2022 6:56:24 AM

Supervisors Coonerty/McPherson/Caput,

With the start of the year 2022, the publicly-owned Santa Cruz Coastal Corridor has now
remained closed for a decade.   In the coming weeks, Santa Cruz County has the opportunity
to move forward with opening this valuable resource through the federal railbanking process
that would preserve this transportation corridor for future mass transit while allowing for
the removal of the old railroad tracks and construction of the Coastal Trail.   

You have the opportunity lead our community in moving forward with updating the County
Master Plan for transportation along the Santa Cruz Coastal Corridor.   We request that you
vote to update the Master Plan NOW.   We request that you support railbanking the corridor
to preserve the public asset for future mass transit and move-forward with pulling rails and
building interim Coastal Trail in 2022.

Best regards,

Brian Peoples
Trail Now

Written Communications to the Board of Directors

7.2.1

mailto:brian@trailnow.org
mailto:ryan.coonerty@santacruzcounty.us
mailto:Bruce.McPherson@santacruzcounty.us
mailto:greg.caput@co.santa-cruz.ca.us
mailto:gpreston@sccrtc.org
mailto:Matt.Machado@santacruzcounty.us
mailto:manu.koenig@santacruzcounty.us
mailto:BDS022@co.santa-cruz.ca.us
mailto:rpquinn@pacbell.net
mailto:info@sccrtc.org
mailto:boardinquiries@scmtd.com
mailto:openup@cats.ucsc.edu
mailto:Gine.Johnson@santacruzcounty.us
mailto:rlj12@comcast.net
mailto:eduardo.montesino@cityofwatsonville.org
mailto:Andy.Schiffrin@santacruzcounty.us
mailto:schristensen@sccrtc.org
mailto:smunz@sccrtc.org
mailto:alnorthc@cabrillo.edu
mailto:sbrown@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:jacques.bertrand@sbcglobal.net
mailto:ladykpetersen@gmail.com
mailto:nnguyen@cityofsantacruz.com


This Message Is From an External Sender
This message came from outside your organization.
Please exercise caution when clicking links or opening attachments.

From: pjlsb@att.net
To: ryan.coonerty@santacruzcounty.us; Bruce McPherson; greg.caput@co.santa-cruz.ca.us; Brian Peoples
Cc: Guy Preston; Matt Machado; Manu Koenig; Zach Friend; rpquinn@pacbell.net; info@sccrtc.org;

boardinquiries@scmtd.com; openup@cats.ucsc.edu; Gine Johnson; rlj12@comcast.net;
eduardo.montesino@cityofwatsonville.org; Andy Schiffrin; Sarah Christensen; Shannon Munz;
alnorthc@cabrillo.edu; sbrown@cityofsantacruz.com; jacques.bertrand@sbcglobal.net;
ladykpetersen@gmail.com; Nathan Nguyen

Subject: Re: Update County Master Plan and railbank / build interim Coastal Trail
Date: Saturday, January 01, 2022 9:59:59 AM

Dear Supervisors Caput, Coonerty, and McPherson,

Happy New Year.

Please take a leadership role in updating the County Master Plan for transportation
along the Monterey Bay Scenic Sanctuary Trail Corridor by voting to update the
Master Plan now.  Your actions can open a active transportation corridor for the
community to allow for safer, car-free travel for children going to parks, beaches, and
schools.  It will give adults a alternative to driving for short errands to appointments,
grocery stores, and meetings, and workplaces.  It would provide positive reductions in
greenhouse gasses  produced by automobiles.  Foremost, it would be obtainable
within our county's identified funding. And, it would preserve this transportation
corridor for future mass transit.

Best regards,

Peter Stanger
19 Escuela Road, Watsonville, CA 95076

On Saturday, January 1, 2022, 06:56:31 AM PST, Brian Peoples <brian@trailnow.org> wrote:

Supervisors Coonerty/McPherson/Caput,

With the start of the year 2022, the publicly-owned Santa Cruz Coastal Corridor has now
remained closed for a decade.   In the coming weeks, Santa Cruz County has the opportunity
to move forward with opening this valuable resource through the federal railbanking process
that would preserve this transportation corridor for future mass transit while allowing for
the removal of the old railroad tracks and construction of the Coastal Trail.   

You have the opportunity lead our community in moving forward with updating the County
Master Plan for transportation along the Santa Cruz Coastal Corridor.   We request that you
vote to update the Master Plan NOW.   We request that you support railbanking the corridor

Written Communications to the Board of Directors

7.3.1

mailto:pjlsb@att.net
mailto:ryan.coonerty@santacruzcounty.us
mailto:bruce.mcpherson@santacruzcounty.us
mailto:greg.caput@co.santa-cruz.ca.us
mailto:brian@trailnow.org
mailto:gpreston@sccrtc.org
mailto:matt.machado@santacruzcounty.us
mailto:manu.koenig@santacruzcounty.us
mailto:bds022@co.santa-cruz.ca.us
mailto:rpquinn@pacbell.net
mailto:info@sccrtc.org
mailto:boardinquiries@scmtd.com
mailto:openup@cats.ucsc.edu
mailto:gine.johnson@santacruzcounty.us
mailto:rlj12@comcast.net
mailto:eduardo.montesino@cityofwatsonville.org
mailto:andy.schiffrin@santacruzcounty.us
mailto:schristensen@sccrtc.org
mailto:smunz@sccrtc.org
mailto:alnorthc@cabrillo.edu
mailto:sbrown@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:jacques.bertrand@sbcglobal.net
mailto:ladykpetersen@gmail.com
mailto:nnguyen@cityofsantacruz.com


to preserve the public asset for future mass transit and move-forward with pulling rails and
building interim Coastal Trail in 2022.

Best regards,

Brian Peoples
Trail Now

Written Communications to the Board of Directors

7.3.2



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



10.1.1



10.1.2



10.1.3



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



Attachment A

10.1A.1



Attachment A

10.1A.2



Attachment A

10.1A.3



Attachment A

10.1A.4



Attachment A

10.1A.5



Attachment A

10.1A.6



Attachment A

10.1A.7



Attachment A

10.1A.8



Attachment A

10.1A.9



Attachment A

10.1A.10



Attachment A

10.1A.11



Attachment A

10.1A.12



Attachment A

10.1A.13



Attachment A

10.1A.14



Attachment A

10.1A.15



Attachment A

10.1A.16



Attachment A

10.1A.17



Attachment A

10.1A.18



Attachment A

10.1A.19



Attachment A

10.1A.20



Attachment A

10.1A.21



Attachment A

10.1A.22



Attachment A

10.1A.23



Attachment A

10.1A.24



Attachment A

10.1A.25



Attachment A

10.1A.26



Attachment A

10.1A.27



Attachment A

10.1A.28



Attachment A

10.1A.29



Attachment A

10.1A.30



Attachment A

10.1A.31



Attachment A

10.1A.32



Attachment A

10.1A.33



Attachment A

10.1A.34



Attachment A

10.1A.35



Attachment A

10.1A.36



Attachment A

10.1A.37



Attachment A

10.1A.38



10.2.1



10.2.2



10.2.3



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



DRAFT

SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT (METRO) 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES* 

December 10, 2021 – 9:00 AM 
MEETING HELD VIA TELECONFERENCE 

A special meeting of the Board of Directors of the Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District (METRO) 
convened on Friday, December 10, 2021, via teleconference.  

The Board Meeting Agenda Packet can be found online at www.SCMTD.com. *Minutes are
“summary” minutes, not verbatim minutes. Audio recordings Board meeting open sessions are 
available to the public upon request. 

This document was created with accessibility in mind. With the exception of certain third party and 
other attachments, it passes the Adobe Acrobat XI Accessibility Full Check.  If you have any 
questions about the accessibility of this document, please email your inquiry to 
accessibility@scmtd.com. 

1 CALL TO ORDER at 9:02 AM by Board Chair Lind.  

2 ROLL CALL: The following Directors were present via teleconference, representing a 
quorum:  

Director Jimmy Dutra  City of Watsonville    AR 9:06 AM 
Director Shebreh Kalantari-Johnson City of Santa Cruz  
Director Manu Koenig County of Santa Cruz 
Director Donna Lind  City of Scotts Valley  
Director Bruce McPherson County of Santa Cruz   
Director Donna Meyers City of Santa Cruz 
Director Alta Northcutt City of Watsonville    AR 9:04 AM 
Director Larry Pageler County of Santa Cruz 
Director Kristen Petersen   City of Capitola 
Director - Vacant County of Santa Cruz   
Director Mike Rotkin  County of Santa Cruz 
Ex-Officio Director Dan Henderson UC Santa Cruz     
Ex-Officio Director - Vacant  Cabrillo College  

Additional METRO staff: 
Alex Clifford  CEO/General Manager 
Julie Sherman  General Counsel 

3 ANNOUNCEMENTS  
Today’s meeting is being broadcast by Community Television of Santa Cruz County. 

4 BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMENTS 
Hearing none, Chair Lind moved to the next agenda item. 

Attachment A

10.2A.1



DRAFT

Board of Directors  
December 10, 2021 
Page 2 of 3 

5 ORAL AND WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Hearing none, Chair Lind moved to the next agenda item. 

6 LABOR ORGANIZATION COMMUNICATIONS  
James Sandoval, SMART General Chairperson, spoke to an email sent to the Board of 
Directors (attached) requesting Board members to consider the unions’ questions in the 
recruitment process as well as create an advisory committee comprised of union and 
department staff. 

Hearing nothing further, Chair Lind moved to the next agenda item. 

7 METRO ADVISORY COMMITTEE (MAC) WRITTEN COMMUNICATION 
Hearing none, Chair Lind moved to the next agenda item.  

8 ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATION TO SUPPORT EXISTING AGENDA ITEMS 
Hearing none, Chair Lind moved to the next agenda item.  

CONSENT AGENDA 

9.1 ACCEPT AND FILE:  MINUTES FROM NOVEMBER 19, 2021 METRO BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS MEETING 

9.2 CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL TO APPLY FOR A BOND RATING FROM A RATING 
AGENCY REQUIRED FOR THE POTENTIAL SALE OF BONDS TO REFINANCE THE 
DISTRICT’S UNFUNDED PENSION LIABILITY 

9.3 CONSIDERATION OF RATIFICATION OF CONTRACT WITH KRAUTHAMER & 
ASSOCIATES LLC FOR CEO/GM RECRUITMENT SERVICES  

There were no public comments. 

ACTION:  MOTION TO APPROVE THE CO NSENT AGENDA AS PRESENTED 

MOTION: DIRECTOR PAGELER SECOND:  DIRECTOR ROTKIN 

MOTION PASSED WITH 9 AYES (Directors Dutra, Kalantari-Johnson, Koenig, Lind, Meyers, 
Northcutt, Pageler, Petersen, & Rotkin)    

REGULAR AGENDA 

10. RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION AT 9:09 AM
Chair Lind reported there is one item for discussion regarding public employee appointments
for the CEO/GM position and Interim CEO/GM position.

There were no public comments.

SECTION II: CLOSED SESSION 

11. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENTS (GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54957);
CEO/GM POSITION AND INTERIM CEO/GM POSITION

SECTION III: RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION at 10:30 AM 

Directors Dutra, Kalantari-Johnson, Koenig, Meyers, and Petersen were unable to return to the 
open session. 

Attachment A

10.2A.2



DRAFT

Board of Directors  
December 10, 2021 
Page 3 of 3 

Chair Lind reported out that the recruitment process was discussed and Board members 
are encouraging public input from employees, the unions and other stakeholders in this 
recruitment.  The recruiter has the understanding that this process is to be very inclusive.  
The Board emphasized this process needs to remain confidential so that applicants feel 
comfortable in applying and know that their application will be confidential so as not to 
interfere with their current employment.  The interim position was discussed but no 
selection was made.  

There were no public comments. 

12 ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEXT MEETING: 
Chair Lind announced the next regular Board Meeting will be on January 28, 2022 via 
teleconference. 

13 ADJOURNMENT 

Chair Lind adjourned the meeting at 10:33 AM. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Donna Bauer 
Executive Assistant 

Attachment A

10.2A.3



DRAFT

This Message Is From an External Sender
This message came from outside your organization.
Please exercise caution when clicking links or opening attachments.

From: jasandoval607@yahoo.com
To: Alta Northcutt; Bruce McPherson; Dan Rothwell; Donna Lind; Donna Meyers; Jimmy Dutra; Kristen Petersen;

Larry Mangioli; Larry Pageler; Manu Koenig; Michael Rotkin; Shebreh Kalantari-Johnson
Cc: boardinquiries@scmtd.com
Subject: Labor Communications: Questionnaire for General Manager/CEO Applicants
Date: Friday, December 10, 2021 8:22:12 AM
Attachments: image001.png

Good morning, Board of Directors,

Here are some questions SMART Local 0023 and SEIU 521 produced that are most important for us
to know about the General Manager/CEO Applicants. We hope these questions can be implemented
in the application process so we can have a better understanding of who they are and what they can
bring to the table. We are also hoping if we are not on the hiring panel that we can create a METRO
advisory committee that’s composed of a few union representatives from SMART and SEIU, as well a
representative from each department at METRO. That way we bring in someone that works for
everyone at METRO. Here are the questions we have so far:

1. Name
2. Cell Phone
3. Email
4. Briefly describe your background, work history, education, and prior public service:
5. Please describe your membership, work, or experience with labor unions:
6. Are you willing to meet regularly with union representatives?
7. What steps will you take to be accessible to workers and their representatives?
8. In addition, will you ensure direct access to you?
9. Will you regularly visit Sacramento to lobby for grants?

10. How important is workplace safety to you?
11. What are your thoughts on flexible/remote work?
12. How will you ensure there will be good workplace morale at METRO?
13. Will you be flexible with work schedules for administrative staff? (Example: Starting before

6am or ending after 6pm)

Thank you,

James Sandoval
Organizer, General Chairperson
SMART Local 0023
8312470400
td23.smart-local.org

Attachment A

10.2A.4

mailto:jasandoval607@yahoo.com
mailto:alnorthc@cabrillo.edu
mailto:bruce.mcpherson@santacruzcounty.us
mailto:jdanrothwell@gmail.com
mailto:dlindslind@earthlink.net
mailto:dmeyers@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:jimmy.dutra@cityofwatsonville.org
mailto:ladykpetersen@gmail.com
mailto:mamoore1@aol.com
mailto:larry.pageler@gmail.com
mailto:manu.koenig@santacruzcounty.us
mailto:mrotkin@ucaft.org
mailto:skalantari-johnson@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:boardinquiries@scmtd.com
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__td23.smart-2Dlocal.org_&d=DwMFAg&c=vCDrleHcoEhrUDSjAVu-qeAta6Mf9f1T3klza659IBc&r=dmgwIqu__RLv8141kFCMRiGWps2OIgVPkHT27sOi-NQ&m=DRI-_oAJFfiX-l66gcreB0OD6ktqFYD-xX0oGs_e1BGmn8k2fAYg5_QQmtg5emxZ&s=6uU-gqZDNNtF30RKAjtaPfoOg51UpCt7P0l-Wsgn-3Q&e=

SHEET METAL | AIR| RAIL| TRANSPORTATION












- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK -











10.3.1



10.3.2



10.3.3



10.3.4



10.3.5



10.3.6



10.3.7



10.3.8



10.3.9



10.3.10



Attachment A

10.3A.1



Attachment A

10.3A.2



Attachment A

10.3A.3



Attachment A

10.3A.4



Attachment A

10.3A.5



Attachment A

10.3A.6



Attachment A

10.3A.7



Attachment A

10.3A.8



Attachment A

10.3A.9



Attachment A

10.3A.10



Attachment A

10.3A.11



Attachment A

10.3A.12



Attachment A

10.3A.13



Attachment A

10.3A.14



Attachment A

10.3A.15



Attachment A

10.3A.16



Attachment A

10.3A.17



Attachment A

10.3A.18



Attachment A

10.3A.19



Attachment A

10.3A.20



Attachment A

10.3A.21



Attachment A

10.3A.22



Attachment A

10.3A.23



Attachment A

10.3A.24



Attachment A

10.3A.25



Attachment A

10.3A.26



10.4.1



10.4.2



10.4.3



10.4.4



10.4.5



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



Attachment A

10.4A.1



Attachment A

10.4A.2



Attachment A

10.4A.3



Attachment A

10.4A.4



Attachment A

10.4A.5



Attachment A

10.4A.6



Attachment A

10.4A.7



Attachment A

10.4A.8



Attachment A

10.4A.9



Attachment A

10.4A.10



Attachment A

10.4A.11



Attachment A

10.4A.12



Attachment A

10.4A.13



Attachment A

10.4A.14



Attachment A

10.4A.15



Attachment A

10.4A.16



Attachment A

10.4A.17



Attachment A

10.4A.18



Attachment A

10.4A.19



Attachment A

10.4A.20



Attachment A

10.4A.21



Attachment A

10.4A.22



Attachment A

10.4A.23



Attachment A

10.4A.24



Attachment A

10.4A.25



Attachment A

10.4A.26



Attachment A

10.4A.27



Attachment A

10.4A.28



Attachment A

10.4A.29



Attachment A

10.4A.30



Attachment A

10.4A.31



Attachment A

10.4A.32



Attachment A

10.4A.33



Attachment A

10.4A.34



Attachment A

10.4A.35



Attachment A

10.4A.36



Attachment A

10.4A.37



Attachment A

10.4A.38



Attachment A

10.4A.39



Attachment A

10.4A.40



Attachment A

10.4A.41



Attachment A

10.4A.42



Attachment A

10.4A.43



Attachment A

10.4A.44



Attachment A

10.4A.45



Attachment A

10.4A.46



Attachment A

10.4A.47



Attachment A

10.4A.48



Attachment A

10.4A.49



Attachment A

10.4A.50



Attachment A

10.4A.51



Attachment A

10.4A.52



Attachment A

10.4A.53



Attachment A

10.4A.54



Attachment A

10.4A.55



Attachment A

10.4A.56



Attachment A

10.4A.57



Attachment A

10.4A.58



Attachment A

10.4A.59



Attachment A

10.4A.60



Attachment A

10.4A.61



Attachment A

10.4A.62



Attachment A

10.4A.63



Attachment A

10.4A.64



Attachment A

10.4A.65



Attachment A

10.4A.66



Attachment A

10.4A.67



Attachment A

10.4A.68



Attachment A

10.4A.69



Attachment A

10.4A.70



Attachment A

10.4A.71



Attachment A

10.4A.72



Attachment A

10.4A.73



Attachment A

10.4A.74



Attachment B

10.4B.1



Attachment B

10.4B.2



Attachment B

10.4B.3



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



Attachment C

10.4C.1



Attachment C

10.4C.2



Attachment C

10.4C.3



Attachment C

10.4C.4



Attachment C

10.4C.5



Attachment C

10.4C.6



Attachment C

10.4C.7



Attachment C

10.4C.8



Attachment C

10.4C.9



Attachment C

10.4C.10



Attachment C

10.4C.11



Attachment C

10.4C.12



Attachment C

10.4C.13



Attachment C

10.4C.14



10.5.1



10.5.2



10.5.3



10.5.4



10.5A.1



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



10.5B.1



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



10.5C.1



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



 

DATE: January 28, 2022 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Carolee Curtin, Interim Purchasing Manager  

SUBJECT: ACCEPT AND FILE THE QUARTERLY PROCUREMENT REPORT FOR 
3rd QUARTER OF FY22 

I. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

That the Board of Directors accept and file the Quarterly Procurement 
Report for the 3rd quarter of FY22 

II. SUMMARY 

 This staff report provides the Board of Directors (Board) with a Quarterly 
Procurement Report for the 3rd quarter of FY22, covering the months of 
January through March.   

 Each quarter staff will provide a Quarterly Procurement Report listing 
anticipated formal procurements within the upcoming quarter that are not 
being presented to the Board separately.  

III. DISCUSSION/BACKGROUND 

The purpose of this report is to provide the Board an opportunity to review and 
comment on upcoming formal procurements before they are ready for award.   

Formal procurements are defined as construction valued at $10,000 or more, and 
goods, materials and professional services valued at $50,000 or more.  Formal 
procurements related to major projects will be presented to the Board separately 
in stand-alone Staff Reports. 

Attachment A details the regular formal procurements the Purchasing 
Department is planning on issuing during the 3rd quarter of FY22 (January 
through March).  In addition, this report includes an item from the month of 
December that was overlooked in the FY22 2nd quarter report. 

IV. STRATEGIC PLAN PRIORITIES ALIGNMENT 

This report pertains to Financial Stability, Stewardship & Accountability. 

Santa Cruz Metropolitan 

Transit District 

 

10.6.1



Board of Directors 
January 28, 2022 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 

Quarterly Procurement Report 

V. FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS/IMPACT 

See Attachment A. 

VI. CHANGES FROM COMMITTEE 

N/A  

VII. ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 

N/A 

VIII. ATTACHMENTS 

Attachment A: FY22 3rd Quarter Anticipated Procurements Listing 

 
 
Prepared by:  Joan Jeffries, Purchasing Agent  

10.6.2



10.6.3



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



Attachment A

10.6A.1



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



10.7.1



10.7.2



10.7.3



10.7.4



Attachment A

10.7A.1



Attachment A

10.7A.2



10.8.1



10.8.2



10.8.3



10.8.4



Attachment A

10.8A.1



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



Attachment B

10.8B.1



Attachment B

10.8B.2



Attachment B

10.8B.3



Attachment B

10.8B.4



Attachment B

10.8B.5



Attachment B

10.8B.6



Attachment C

10.8C.1



Attachment C

10.8C.2



Attachment C

10.8C.3



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



10.9.1



10.9.2



10.9.3



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



10.10.1



10.10.2



10.10.3



10.10.4



Attachment A

10.10A.1



Attachment A

10.10A.2



Attachment A

10.10A.3



Attachment A

10.10A.4



Attachment A

10.10A.5



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



Attachment B

10.10B.1



Attachment B

10.10B.2



Attachment B

10.10B.3



Attachment B

10.10B.4



Attachment B

10.10B.5



Attachment B

10.10B.6



10.11.1



10.11.2



10.11.3



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



Attachment A

10.11A.1



Attachment A

10.11A.2



Attachment A

10.11A.3



Attachment A

10.11A.4



Attachment A

10.11A.5



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



 

DATE: January 28, 2022 

TO: Board of Directors  

FROM: Isaac Holly, IT and ITS Director  

SUBJECT: CONSIDERATION OF ISSUING PURCHASE ORDER TO GMV 
SYNCROMATICS FOR CONTINUATION OF INTELLIGENT 
TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM SUPPORT 

I. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

That the Board of Directors issue a purchase order in the amount of 
$10,000 per month to GMV Syncromatics for the continued support of the 
intelligent transportation system (ITS) while new ITS system is being 
installed by Clever Devices 

II. SUMMARY 

 On November 19, 2021, the Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District (Santa 
Cruz METRO) terminated its contract with GMV Syncromatics for the 
Purchase and Installation of an Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) and 
awarded an ITS contract to Clever Devices.  

 During the transition period in which the GMV Syncromatics system will be 
removed and the Clever Devices system will be installed, GMV Syncromatics 
has committed to support its existing ITS system at no cost to METRO for a 
period of 6 months. 

 After six months, GMV Syncromatics would be paid $10,000 per month to 
support its system.  

 Staff is recommending Board approval of a purchase order (PO) to GMV 
Syncromatics in the event that the transition period lasts longer than 6 
months.  

III. DISCUSSION/BACKGROUND 

On October 26, 2018, the Board of Directors awarded a contract to GMV 
Syncromatics for Purchase and Installation of an ITS. The project commenced in 
January of 2019. 

During GMV Syncromatics's performance of the contract, staff came to the 
conclusion that the business relationship between the two parties was not 
working out as anticipated and that it was in Metro's best interest to terminate the 
contract for convenience.   

Santa Cruz Metropolitan 

Transit District 

 

10.12.1



Board of Directors  
January 28, 2022 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 

Purchase Order for Intelligent Transportation System                                                                                                       

On November 19, 2021, the Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District (Santa Cruz 
METRO) terminated its contract with GMV Syncromatics for the Purchase and 
Installation of an Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) and awarded an ITS 
contract to Clever Devices. During the transition period in which the GMV 
Syncromatics system will be removed and the Clever Devices system will be 
installed, GMV Syncromatics has committed to support its existing ITS system at 
no cost to METRO for a period of 6 months. After six months, GMV Syncromatics 
would be paid $10,000 per month to support its system.  

Staff is recommending Board approval of a purchase order (PO) in the amount of 
$10,000 per month up to a maximum amount of $130,000 to GMV Syncromatics 
in the event that the transition period lasts longer than 6 months. If the transition 
is complete within six months, no money will be spent for GMV Syncromatics' 
support.  

IV. STRATEGIC PLAN PRIORITIES ALIGNMENT 

This report aligns to METRO’s Service Quality and Delivery and Internal and 
External Technology. 

V. FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS/IMPACT 

Funding in the amount of $130,000 shall be included in the FY23 and FY24 IT 
Department Operating budget. 

VI. CHANGES FROM COMMITTEE (Board Report ONLY) 

None 

VII. ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 

The Board could direct staff to allow the GMV Syncromatics' support to expire at 
the end of six months. This is not recommended because the ITS would be 
unsupported and cease to function for a likely period of several months, which 
would interrupt operations. 

VIII. ATTACHMENTS 

Attachments:  Resolution 
 
Prepared by:  Isaac Holly, IT and ITS Director   

10.12.2



Board of Directors 
January 28, 2022 
Page 3 of 3 

IX. APPROVALS 

Isaac Holly, IT & ITS Director 

Approved as to fiscal impact: 
Chuck Farmer, CFO 

Dawn Crummie, 
Interim CEO/General Manager 

Purchase Order for Intelligent Transportation System 

10.12.3



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



 

 

 

  

 
 

Resolution No.      
On the Motion of Director:     
Duly Seconded by Director:     

                                                                                  The Following Resolution is Adopted: 

 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE  
SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT ISSUING PURCHASE ORDER TO 

GMV SYNCROMATICS FOR CONTINUATION OF  
INTELLIGENT TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM SUPPORT 

 
 
 WHEREAS, on November 19, 2021, the Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit 

District (Santa Cruz METRO) terminated its contract with GMV Syncromatics for the 
Purchase and Installation of an Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) and awarded an 
ITS contract to Clever Devices; and 

 
 WHEREAS, during the transition period in which the GMV Syncromatics 

system will be removed and the Clever Devices system will be installed, GMV 
Syncromatics has committed to support its existing ITS system at no cost to METRO for 
a period of 6 months; and 

 
 WHEREAS, after six months, GMV Syncromatics would be paid $10,000 

per month to support its system; and 
 
 WHEREAS, staff is recommending Board approval of a purchase order 

(PO) to GMV Syncromatics in the amount of $10,000 per month up to a maximum 
amount of $130,000 in the event that the transition period lasts longer than 6 months.  

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the 

Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District (METRO) approves the issuance of a PO to 
GMV Syncromatics in the amount of $10,000 per month up to a maximum amount of 
$130,000 for the purpose of supporting its existing ITS system. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Santa Cruz   

Metropolitan Transit District this 28th Day of January 2022 by the following vote: 
 

AYES: Directors -   
 
NOES: Directors - 
 

Attachment A

10.12A.1



Resolution # 
Page 2 of 2  
 
 
 

 

  

ABSTAIN: Directors - 
 
ABSENT: Directors - 
 
 

APPROVED       
         DONNA LIND 
                                                                                      Board Chair 

 
ATTEST       

DAWN CRUMMIÉ 
Interim CEO/General Manager 

 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       
JULIE SHERMAN 
General Counsel 
 

 

Attachment A

10.12A.2



10.13.1



10.13.2



10.13.3



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



Attachment A

10.13A.1



Attachment A

10.13A.2



Attachment A

10.13A.3



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



DATE: January 28, 2022 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Chuck Farmer, Chief Financial Officer 

SUBJECT: AUTHORIZING SALES TAX REVENUE BONDS MEASURE G), SERIES 
2022 (FEDERALLY TAXABLE) TO REFINANCE THE DISTRICT’S 
CALPERS UAL AND APPROVAL OF RELATED LEGAL AND 
DISCLOSURE DOCUMENTS.  

I. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

THAT THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS APPROVE THE ISSUANCE OF SALES 
TAX REVENUE BONDS (MEASURE G), SERIES 2022 (FEDERALLY TAXABLE) 
(2022 BONDS), WHICH BONDS ARE ANTICIPATED NOT-TO-EXCEED THE 
AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $55 MILLION.   

THE BOARD SHALL ALSO CONFIRM APPROVAL OF THE FORM OF AN 
INDENTURE OF TRUST FOR SUCH BONDS, AND APPROVE THE FORM OF 
PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT (POS) AND BOND PURCHASE 
AGREEMENT (BPA). 

THE BOARD SHALL AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE 
THE BPA WITH SAMNUEL A. RAMIREZ & CO. TO PURCHASE THE 
PROPOSED BOND ISSUE, WHICH WILL BE PAID A NOT-TO-EXCEED 
UNDERWRITER’S DISCOUNT EQUAL TO ($2.86 PER BOND) $149,431.82 
INCLUDING EXPENSES.  

 The Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District (METRO or District)’s current
outstanding pension balance, as of June 30, 2020, is approximately $68 million.

 METRO’s unfunded accrued liability (UAL) is currently accruing interest at a
Discount Rate of 7.0%.

 CalPERS recently announced an investment return of 21.3% and subsequent
lowering of the Discount Rate to 6.8%, which will result in a net credit, lowering the
UAL to approximately $51.3 million.

 METRO has applied for a bond rating from Standard & Poor’s.

 The 2022 Bonds will be secured by METRO’s ½ Sales Tax (Measure G), to obtain
the highest rating and potentially qualify for municipal bond insurance.

II. SUMMARY OF ISSUES

Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District (METRO) obtained approval to issue
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds (Measure G), Series 2022 (Federally Taxable) (2022
Bonds) to refinance its outstanding CalPERS pension liability on December 17,

Santa Cruz Metropolitan 

Transit District 

11.1

(



Board of Directors 
January 28, 2022 
Page 2 of 5 
 

Approval of Sale of Sales Tax Revenue Bonds 

2021.  The approval triggered a 60-day passive validation period under California 
law. Staff is returning to the Board for the final approval of the sale of the 2022 
Bonds, which it will sell after the 60-day period expires on or about February 16, 
2022. 

Staff recommends that the Board of Directors (Board) approve the sale of the 
2022 Bonds for funding METRO’s outstanding UAL, which bonds are anticipated 
not-to-exceed the aggregate principal of $55 million.  This staff report also 
includes a summary of the related legal and disclosure documents: Indenture of 
Trust, BPA and the POS.  

III. DISCUSSION/BACKGROUND 

METRO reviewed various funding strategies to address its UAL.  METRO has 
determined that the issuance of bonds to refinance UAL provided the most significant 
impact.  

METRO has assembled the financing team, via competitive RFP process, to assist with 
the issuance of bonds finance its pension liability, which includes Urban Futures, Inc. as 
Municipal Advisor, Jones Hall, A Professional Law Corporation, as Bond Counsel and 
Disclosure Counsel, and Samuel A. Ramirez & Co., Inc. as the Bond Underwriter.    

The Municipal Advisor and the Bond Underwriter have determined that the bond/legal 
structure that would provide METRO with the highest bond rating and lowest cost of 
borrowing would require the direct pledge of the District’s 1978 Measure G ½ cent Sales 
Tax Revenues.  

Although METRO’s UAL is equal to $68 million, CalPERS recorded a 21.3% last year.  
This also prompted CalPERS to lower the discount rate to 6.80% and the Price Inflator 
to 2.30%.  These actions, collectively, will result in an estimated credit of approximately 
$16 million, lower METRO’s UAL to approximately $52 million**.   

**This value is only an estimate, which does not include adjustments for “demographic” 
changes, such as death, termination, disability, early/late retirement, raises or promotions, which 
are difficult to estimate.  The actual UAL for FY21 will be determined in the June 30, 2021 
actuarial reports, which will released in August 2022.     

The 2022 Bonds will be structured as fixed rate bonds with a 15-year final maturity and 
10-year call (refinance) option.  The 2022 Bonds will be sold as a series of 15 bonds:  1 
Year to 15 Year maturities.  Each bond has a different interest rate or yield – increasing 
with the term to maturity.    

Bond Rating & Bond Insurance– In the majority of cases, an issuer is required to 
obtain a bond rating from one or more of the nationally recognized rating agencies (i.e., 
S&P, Moody’s, or Fitch).  METRO has applied for a bond rating from Standard & Poor’s 
Investors Service.  

11.2



Board of Directors 
January 28, 2022 
Page 3 of 5 
 

Approval of Sale of Sales Tax Revenue Bonds 

METRO has not issued long-term fixed rate bonds previously; therefore, this was 
considered METRO’s inaugural rating, which required a more in-depth analysis by S&P.  
The finance team and METRO staff put together a 40-page PowerPoint and made a 
presentation to S&P (over 1 ½ hours) earlier this month.  The finance team anticipates 
that the 2022 Bonds will receive an underlying rating in the “AA” category.  However, the 
final bond rating will not be determined until after this meeting (but before the sale of the 
2022 Bonds).   

The payment of interest and principal bonds will also likely be guaranteed by under a 
municipal bond insurance policy, which also carry a “AA “rating but viewed favorably by 
investors; and therefore, it is expected to lower METRO’s total cost of borrowing. This 
will be a decision made around the day of bond pricing based on a cost/benefit analysis. 

The capital markets are experiencing volatility in the current market, due to a variety of 
factors, including the Federal Open Market Committee’s (FOMC) indication that it plans 
to raise interest rates in the near future. METRO is planning to issue the 2022 Bonds as 
soon as the 60-day passive validation period expires, on or about February 16, 2022. 

Interest rates have moved considerably since we provided an estimate in December of 
2021.  The financing team estimates that the bonds borrowing rate will be in the 3.00% 
to 3.50%, which will provide $14 to $16 million in budgetary savings. 

The 2022 Bonds are anticipated to not exceed the aggregate principal amount of $55 
million, which provides for the cost of issuance of $275,000 plus the underwriter’s 
discount of $149,431.82.  The remaining proceeds will be sent directly to CalPERS to 
pay-off METRO’s UAL. 

Related Legal Documents 

Attached are three legal documents: Bond Purchase Agreement (BPA), Indenture of 
Trust, and Preliminary Official Statement (POS), for the Board’s review and approval. 
The General Manager and CFO will be required to sign numerous other legal forms and 
disclaimers related to the financing; however, these three key legal documents require 
Board approval. 

Bond Purchase Agreement - The Bond Purchase Agreement specifies the price at 
which Samuel A. Ramirez & Co., LLC will purchase the 2022 Bonds and the fees or 
commission that they will receive for selling the bonds to investors.  This fee has been 
negotiated and singed via contract to be $149,431.42.  This amount includes 
approximately $29,431.32 related expenses for the sale of the bonds (CUSIP, wiring 
charges, DTC, CDIAC, day loan, and underwriters counsel).  

Indenture of Trust – The Indenture of Trust is the legal agreement drafted by bond 
counsel between METRO and a third-party trustee (US Bank), that assigns certain 
fiduciary duties to the Trustee who represents the bondholder's interests.  The document 
highlights the rules and responsibilities that each party must adhere to; and includes the 
security pledged toward the bonds (ie., income stream and/or assets). The Indenture of 

11.3



Board of Directors 
January 28, 2022 
Page 4 of 5 
 

Approval of Sale of Sales Tax Revenue Bonds 

Trust outlines the key terms of the bonds: payment dates, call features, and default 
remedies.  

Preliminary Official Statement - The Preliminary Official Statement is the primary 
document provided to investors.  It provides a summary of the plan of finance and the key 
financial and legal provisions of the bonds:  source of repayment, sources and uses of 
funds, final maturity, payments dates, optional redemption, key bond covenants, and 
continuing disclosure requirements.  The POS also provides a summary of the District’s 
operating results, performance data, and key demographic information (Appendix A.) The 
Audited Financial Statements, recently approved by the Board, will be appended to the 
POS prior to distribution (Appendix B).  The POS is the primary disclosure document of 
the District. Therefore, it must include all facts and financial information that would be 
material to an investor. Omission of key material facts could result in enforcement actions 
by the SEC. 

A form of continuing disclosure certificate of METRO is appended to the POS, and 
describes METRO’s obligations to provide continuing disclosure to investors with respect 
to METRO.  

IV. STRATEGIC PLAN PRIORITIES ALIGNMENT 

This report pertains to METRO’s Financial Stability, Stewardship & Accountability. 

V. FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS/IMPACT 
 

The reports and documents will support the Sales Tax Revenue Bond issuance in 
February 2022, saving METRO millions in future expenditures.  

VI. CHANGES FROM COMMITTEE 

N/A. 

VII. ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 
Should METRO not approve the sale of the 2022 Bonds, METRO will incur 
millions in interest payments above the interest payments in issuing bonds. 

 
VIII. ATTACHMENTS 

           Attachment A:        Resolution approving the sale of Sales Tax Revenue Bonds 

           Attachment B:        Bond Purchase Agreement (BPA) 

           Attachment C:        Indenture of Trust 

           Attachment D:        Preliminary Offer Statement (POS) 

 

Prepared by:  Chuck Farmer, CFO   

11.4



Board of Directors 
January 28, 2022 
Page 5 of 5 

IX. APPROVALS 

Chuck Farmer, Chief Financial Office

Dawn Crummie, 
Interim CEO/General Manager 

r 

Approval of Sale of Sales Tax Revenue Bonds 

11.5



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



Attachment A

11A.1



Attachment A

11A.2



Attachment A

11A.3



Attachment A

11A.4



Attachment A

11A.5



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



Attachment B

11B.1



Attachment B

11B.2



Attachment B

11B.3



Attachment B

11B.4



Attachment B

11B.5



Attachment B

11B.6



Attachment B

11B.7



Attachment B

11B.8



Attachment B

11B.9



Attachment B

11B.10



Attachment B

11B.11



Attachment B

11B.12



Attachment B

11B.13



Attachment B

11B.14



Attachment B

11B.15



Attachment B

11B.16



Attachment B

11B.17



Attachment B

11B.18



Attachment C

11C.1



Attachment C

11C.2



Attachment C

11C.3



Attachment C

11C.4



Attachment C

11C.5



Attachment C

11C.6



Attachment C

11C.7



Attachment C

11C.8



Attachment C

11C.9



Attachment C

11C.10



Attachment C

11C.11



Attachment C

11C.12



Attachment C

11C.13



Attachment C

11C.14



Attachment C

11C.15



Attachment C

11C.16



Attachment C

11C.17



Attachment C

11C.18



Attachment C

11C.19



Attachment C

11C.20



Attachment C

11C.21



Attachment C

11C.22



Attachment C

11C.23



Attachment C

11C.24



Attachment C

11C.25



Attachment C

11C.26



Attachment C

11C.27



Attachment C

11C.28



Attachment C

11C.29



Attachment C

11C.30



Attachment C

11C.31



Attachment C

11C.32



Attachment C

11C.33



Attachment C

11C.34



Attachment C

11C.35



Attachment C

11C.36



Attachment C

11C.37



Attachment C

11C.38



Attachment C

11C.39



Attachment C

11C.40



Attachment C

11C.41



Attachment C

11C.42



Attachment C

11C.43



Attachment C

11C.44



Attachment C

11C.45



Attachment C

11C.46



Attachment C

11C.47



Attachment C

11C.48



Attachment D

11D.1



Attachment D

11D.2



Attachment D

11D.3



Attachment D

11D.4



Attachment D

11D.5



Attachment D

11D.6



Attachment D

11D.7



Attachment D

11D.8



Attachment D

11D.9



Attachment D

11D.10



Attachment D

11D.11



Attachment D

11D.12



Attachment D

11D.13



Attachment D

11D.14



Attachment D

11D.15



Attachment D

11D.16



Attachment D

11D.17



Attachment D

11D.18



Attachment D

11D.19



Attachment D

11D.20



Attachment D

11D.21



Attachment D

11D.22



Attachment D

11D.23



Attachment D

11D.24



Attachment D

11D.25



Attachment D

11D.26



Attachment D

11D.27



Attachment D

11D.28



Attachment D

11D.29



Attachment D

11D.30



Attachment D

11D.31



Attachment D

11D.32



Attachment D

11D.33



Attachment D

11D.34



Attachment D

11D.35



Attachment D

11D.36



Attachment D

11D.37



Attachment D

11D.38



Attachment D

11D.39



Attachment D

11D.40



Attachment D

11D.41



Attachment D

11D.42



Attachment D

11D.43



Attachment D

11D.44



Attachment D

11D.45



Attachment D

11D.46



Attachment D

11D.47



Attachment D

11D.48



Attachment D

11D.49



Attachment D

11D.50



Attachment D

11D.51



Attachment D

11D.52



Attachment D

11D.53



Attachment D

11D.54



Attachment D

11D.55



Attachment D

11D.56



Attachment D

11D.57



Attachment D

11D.58



Attachment D

11D.59



Attachment D

11D.60



Attachment D

11D.61



Attachment D

11D.62



Attachment D

11D.63



Attachment D

11D.64



Attachment D

11D.65



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



12.1



12.2



12.3



12.4



12.5



12.6



12.7



12.8



12.9



12.10



12.11



12.12



12.13



12.14



12.15



12.16



12.17



12.18



12.19



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



13.1



13.2



13.3



13.4



13.5



13.6



13.7



13.8



13.9



13.10



14.1



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
- THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 



15.1





DATE: January 28, 2022 

TO: Board of Directors  

FROM: Julie Sherman, General Counsel 

SUBJECT: RATIFICATION OF ENGAGEMENT LETTER WITH INTERIM CEO

I. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

That the Board of Directors ratify the Interim CEO/GM Engagement Letter 

II. SUMMARY

 Alex Clifford, CEO/GM of the Santa Cruz Metropolitan (METRO), retired from
METRO effective January 21, 2022.

 On December 17, 2021, the METRO Board of Directors (Board) appointed
Dawn Crummié to the position of Interim CEO/GM and provided direction to
staff to negotiate an Engagement Letter with Ms. Crummié.

 General Counsel recommends Board ratification of said Engagement Letter.

III. DISCUSSION/BACKGROUND

Alex Clifford, CEO/GM of METRO, retired from METRO effective January 21,
2022. On December 17, 2021, the Board appointed Dawn Crummié to the
position of Interim CEO/GM and provided direction to staff to negotiate an
Engagement Letter with Ms. Crummié. General Counsel, Julie Sherman,
recommends Board ratification of said Engagement Letter, which is effective
January 22, 2022. The Engagement Letter stipulates that Ms. Crummié's position
is an "at will" position, is payable at $107.95 per hour (the first step of the
CEO/GM salary range), and the position is anticipated to end upon METRO's
hiring of a new CEO/GM, following a transition period as needed.

IV. CHANGES FROM COMMITTEE (Board Report ONLY)

None

V. ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 

None, ratification of the Engagement Letter is in line with previous Board action 
and direction. 

VI. ATTACHMENT A: Engagement Letter

Prepared by: Julie Sherman, General Counsel 

Santa Cruz Metropolitan 

Transit District 

16.1



Board of Directors 
January 28, 2022 
Page 2 of 2 

VII. APPROVALS 

Approved as to fiscal impact: 
Chuck Farmer, CFO 

Ratification of Interim/GM Engagement Letter 16.2



Attachment A

16A.1



Attachment A

16A.2



17.1




	FINAL 012822 Board Agenda A.pdf
	012822 BOD AGENDA
	SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT (METRO) 
	BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 
	REGULAR MEETING 
	JANUARY 28, 2022 – 9:00 AM 
	DUE TO COVID-19, THE JANUARY 28, 2022 SANTA CRUZ METRO BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED VIA TELECONFERENCE ONLY (NO PHYSICAL LOCATION) PURSUANT TO ASSEMBLY BILL 361 (GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54953) 
	MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC MAY NOT ATTEND THIS MEETING IN PERSON 
	BOARD ROSTER 
	TITLE 6 – INTERPREATION SERVICES / TÍTULO 6 – SERVICIOS DE TRADUCCIÓN 
	SECTION 1:  OPEN SESSION 
	1 CALL TO ORDER 
	2 SWEAR IN NEW DIRECTORS 
	3 ROLL CALL 
	4 ANNOUNCEMENTS 
	5 BOARD OFFICERS & COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS
	6 BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMENTS 
	7 ORAL AND WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
	7.1 DEC. 19, 2021 EMAIL 
	7.2 JAN. 1, 2022 EMAIL
	7.3 JAN. 1, 2022 EMAIL PS
	8 LABOR ORGANIZATION COMMUNICATIONS 
	9 ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATION TO SUPPORT EXISTING AGENDA ITEMS 
	CONSENT AGENDA 
	10.1 CHECK JOURNAL
	10.2 MINUTES FROM DEC AND JAN
	10.3 YTD MONTHLY FINL 123121
	10.4 AUDITED FINL STMTS_REPORT
	10.5 SEMI-ANNUAL REPORT OF DBE
	10.6 QTRLY PROCUREMENT REPORT
	10.7 SEND LETTER TO STATE LEGISLATIVE REPS
	10.8 RESO FY22 REVISED CAPITAL BUDGET
	10.9 TORT CLAIMS
	10.10 HR ANALYST I POSTION
	10.11 DISCLOSURE POLICY & PROCEDURES
	10.12 GMV SYNCROMATICS PO
	10.13 RESO CONT MEETINGS VIA TELECONF
	REGULAR AGENDA 
	11 SALES TAX REVENUE BONDS
	12 EMPLOYEE LONGEVITY AWARDS
	13 RETIREE RESOS
	14 PROCLAMATION
	15 METRO ADVISORY COMMITTEE (MAC) SEMI-ANNUAL ORAL UPDATE 
	16 RATIFICATION OF ENGAGEMENT LETTER W_INTERIM CEO
	17 INTERIM CEO ORAL REPORT / COVID-19 UPDATE 
	18 ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEXT REGULAR BOARD MEETING:  FRIDAY, FEBRUARY 25, 2022 AT 9:00 AM VIA TELECONFERENCE 
	19 ADJOURNMENT 
	Accessibility for Individuals with Disabilities  





